



## Carroll ISD District Committee Bylaws

Board Policy BDB (Local) provides the function of District Committees shall be fact-finding, deliberative, and advisory, but not administrative.

The Board of Trustees for Carroll ISD established the Budget and Finance Committee to act as a fact-finding, deliberative, and advisory to the Board of Trustees in matters regarding Budget and Finance.

### SECTION 1.

1. Each district committee shall have no more than 15 members (*unless otherwise noted in board local and legal policy*) + 2 Trustees appointed by the Board President and will be completed by the following process:
  - a. Each Trustee will review the committee member applications and may nominate 1 applicant + 1 alternate (*in case there are duplicate nominations*) for a particular committee (7).
    - i. Applicants must complete a background check.
    - ii. Selected committee members must sign a [confidentiality agreement](#) for committee discussion, deliberations, and recommendations to protect the integrity of the work that will, at times, be presented to CISD Administration and Board of Trustees.
    - iii. Applicants can only serve on one committee.
  - b. District leaders will nominate staff (5) - District lead is included in the 5
  - c. CISD Board Officers will fill the remaining community member places from the applications (3)
  - d. TOTAL: 10 Community, 5 Staff, plus 2 Trustees Appointed by the Board President ([BDB Local](#)).
  - e. The President of the Board and the Superintendent shall be ex officio members of all Board committees ([BDB Local](#)).
2. There shall be a Committee Chair (*a community member*) agreed upon and appointed by the Committee Membership.
3. There shall be a Committee District Lead who will work in coordination with the Committee Chair.
4. There shall be a Committee Secretary appointed by the Committee Chair responsible for meeting agenda and meeting minutes.





5. There shall be a current website and the District Leader will be responsible for updating the committee's page with membership, agendas, and minutes.
6. Committee members shall serve a two-year staggered term, unless an early termination is agreed upon by majority of the committee membership.
7. Committee chair and secretary shall serve for one- year terms and thereafter until their successors are elected.
8. The bylaws shall be posted on the committee website and shall govern the meetings of the committee.
9. The committee shall use Robert's Rules of Order as a tool to bring order to meetings and allow the group to take care of business in an efficient and predictable manner. Robert's Rules of Order and other kinds of parliamentary procedures are a proven way of conducting meetings.

#### **SECTION 2.**

1. The committee' s bylaws shall be consistent with state law and CISD legal and local policy.
2. Attendance: At a minimum,
  - a. Regular meetings shall be held once each quarter.
  - b. A quorum is 9 committee members. If a quorum can be present, the meeting shall proceed and not be canceled.
  - c. Members not planning to attend a meeting shall notify the district lead or the chair of the committee by 12:00pm of the meeting day.
  - d. Any member with absences and/or no-shows from two (2) consecutive meetings or not exhibiting interest in the work of the committee shall be reported to the Superintendent or Board President. The Board President in consultation with the Superintendent and/or Board Officers, at his discretion, may remove the committee member and appoint a replacement.
  - e. Any member who violates the Carroll ISD Confidentiality Agreement for Board Committee Discussions and Deliberations may be removed from the committee by the Carroll ISD Board President based on the recommendation of the Superintendent and/or Board officers.
  - f. Any vacancy, whether by removal or resignation, occurring in the committee shall be filled by appointment from the Board Officers for the length of the unexpired term.
  - g. Minutes of each meeting shall be filed with the Deputy Superintendent and posted on the committee's district webpage.





**SECTION 3.**

1. The Carroll ISD Board of Trustees or CISD Administration shall:
  - a. Establish a ***purpose*** of the committee.
  - b. Establish the ***primary responsibilities and expected outcomes*** of the committee.
  - c. Establish a ***timeline*** for making any proposal and/or recommendations to the CISD Administration and/or Board of Trustees.
2. The committee shall act in a fact-finding, deliberative, and advisory capacity to the CISD Administration & Board of Trustees in matters pertaining directly to the committee's purpose.
3. The committee shall annually (*by May of each year*) prepare and submit a report to the Superintendent regarding:
  - i. the committee accomplishments of the year
  - ii. identify key priorities for the following year
  - iii. identify any committee membership vacancies for the following year
4. The committee shall perform such other fact-finding, deliberative, and advisory tasks as are delegated to it by the CISD Administration and/or Board of Trustees.

**SECTION 4**

The Budget and Finance Committee shall continue to exist until dissolved or abolished by a decision of the CISD Board Officers or a change in legal or local policy.

**Committee Membership**

Role	Last Name	First Name
Ex-Officio	Glenn	Jeremy
Trustees	Bryan	Cameron
	Yeager	Andrew
Staff	Park	Chase
	Stuart	Randy
	Kibodeaux	Melanie





<b>Community Members</b>	Millman	Milton
	Taggart	Chuck
	Midkiff	Guy
	Charon	Carin
	Mendivil	Marty
	Reece	Matthew
	Hildebrand	Jackson
	Orr	Amanda
	Shafer	Karen
	Davidson	Glenn

Committee Purpose

The Budget and Finance Special Committee’s mission is to ensure the needs of CISD students are met through the efficient use of district funds and the development of effective ways to increase revenues and reduce expenses. Our purpose is to understand district finances and identify potential revenue sources, cost savings and process improvements.

Committee Primary Responsibilities & Expected Outcomes

**Short-term:** Identify additional revenue sources, efficiencies and savings related to potential activity fees, optional service fees, low-enrollment classes and/or electives, booster club grant request/teacher wish-list processes, corporate matching donations/sponsorships, check writing campaign and any other additional areas.

**Mid-term:** Understand and evaluate the costs and benefits of district investments—Return on Investment Analysis (ROI).





**Long-term:** Evaluate the advantages/disadvantages/opportunities of creatively using I&S funds for items paid with M&O dollars and the potential for retail operations at district properties.

**Ongoing:** As a result of ongoing funding challenges facing public education in Texas, the committee will also have local involvement with elected officials in an effort to address these funding challenges. The expectations of the committee are that members will not only remain involved in budget discussions but will serve as public education and District advocates in communication with our elected officials.

### Committee Timeline

Meeting 1: March 11, 2026

Meeting 2: April 15, 2026

Meeting 3: May 13, 2026

